
Department of Commerce, Community, 
and Economic Development 
ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 

550 West 7th Avenue, Suite 1600 
Anchorage, AK 99501 

Main: 907.269.0350 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Alcoholic Beverage Control Board 

FROM: Sonya Irwin, RLS 

DATE: June 20, 2024 

RE: #5708 M/Y Golden Eagle

Requested 
Action: 

Statutory 
and 
Regulatory 
Authority: 

Consider the reinstatement of a license that was expired for not completing the 2020/2021 
renewal before February 28th 2020. If reinstatement is approved, then consider 2022/2023 
renewal, 2024/2025 renewal, and first waiver of operation for 2022. 

AS 04.06.090(b): Only the board may issue, renew, transfer, relocate, suspend, or revoke a license or 
endorsement under this title. The board shall review all applications for licenses and endorsements 
made under this title and may order the director to issue, renew, revoke, transfer, or suspend 
licenses, endorsements, and permits authorized under this title.

AS 04.11.540: …If a complete application for renewal has not been filed by February
28 or the required fees and the penalty fees have not been paid by that date, the license
expires at 12:00 midnight February 28.

3 AAC 305.055. Reinstatement of license. (a) For the purposes of AS 04.11.540, if a license expires 
because an applicant fails to file a complete application for renewal or fails to pay the required 
renewal fees and penalty fees by February 28, the board will consider a written request to reinstate 
the license. A request to reinstate a license must include

(1) the complete renewal application;
(2) a license reinstatement fee of $1,000;
(3) all other required fees and penalty fees; and
(4) proof of good cause for the applicant's failure to file the renewal application by

February 28.
(b) The board will deny a request for reinstatement of a license submitted under (a) of this

section if
(1) the license became available in accordance with 3 AAC 305.040 and the license

was issued to a different applicant, unless the limit of licenses under AS 04.11.400 has not been 
reached; or

(2) the board finds that the applicant's failure to timely file or pay was caused by
(A) the applicant's failure to notify the board of a change of the applicant's

electronic mail address;
(B) a transfer of ownership of the business for which the license was issued

without written approval of the board in violation of AS 04.11.040;
(C) a lease of the licensed business to another person in violation of AS

04.11.450(c); or
(D) any other action of the applicant, whether active or tacit, that the board

finds constitutes a failure to lawfully operate the business for which the license was issued.



Staff Rec.:  Evaluate reinstatement request in accordance with 3 AAC 305.055. 

Background:  Licensee did not complete required corrections to the 2020-2021 renewal 
by February 28th and an expiration and cessation of operations letter was sent out on 
March 12th, 2020. 

Attachment: AB-017: General Renewal Application 2022/2023, AB-17: General 
Renewal Application 2024/2025, AB-29: Waiver of Operation for 2020 (Covid), 2021 
(Covid), 2022 (first waiver), Request for Reinstatement, Chronological summary of events 
for license #5708 DBA: M/Y Golden Eagle, and email communication from staff to 
licensee.  

http://www.akleg.gov/basis/statutes.asp#04.11.670
http://www.akleg.gov/basis/statutes.asp#04.11.670


Chronological summary of events for license #5708 DBA: M/Y Golden Eagle:

1. July 2nd
, 2018: Received New License Application for DBA: Golden Eagle.

2. July 5th, 2018: Incomplete New License Application Letter sent.

3. July 18th, 2018: Second Incomplete New License Application Letter sent.

4. July 27th, 2018: Third Incomplete New License Application Letter.

5. August 6th, 2018: Fourth Incomplete New License Application Letter.

6. September 2018: Went before the Board for consideration of a New License Application.

7. October 22nd, 2018: New License Issued for 2018/2019.

8. February 14th, 2020: Temporary License Issued for 2020/2021 based on a submitted
renewal.

9. February 26th, 2020: Corrections required email and phone call from AMCO to licensee.

10. March 10th, 2020: Final Warning letter regarding required corrections sent.

11. March 12th, 2020: Expiration letter sent to licensee.

12. March 17th, 2020: Licensee responds to email from 2/26/2020 with corrections.

13. April 9th, 2020: Complete Renewal Notice sent to licensee in the email there is mentioned

in bold that they needed to reinstate.

14. April 13th, 2020: Licensee responds to the 4/9/2020 email expressing confusion with the

previous correspondence.

15. April 14th, 2020: The Records and Licensing Supervisor responds to the 4/13/2020 email

explaining that the renewal application had been deemed complete and would be going

before the board at the June ABC Board meeting. The supervisor also states that there is a

need for a written explanation that provides proof of good cause for the failure to complete

the renewal by February 28th and that there is a reinstatement fee of $1000.00.

16. June 15th, 2021: Staff reached out based on an inquiry from the licensee (most likely a

phone call, no email was found). Staff explained in detail how the license was expired and

how the licensee had the option to apply for reinstatement and the requirements for doing

so if they decided to do so.

17. January 16th, 2024: Records and Licensing Supervisor reaches out stating that the renewal

and reinstatement didn't make it on the agenda for the November 13-14, 2023 Board

meeting. The fees for the 2022/2023 renewal had never been received and now the

2024/2025 renewal application and fees were now needed to get caught up for

reinstatement. (It is later found out that the 2022/2023 renewal that is spoken about is for

another license that the licensee owns.)

18. May 3rd, 2024: Licensee responds to 1/16/2024 email stating that they had sent in the

2024/2025 renewal "awhile back but was following up as I haven't heard anything back." (No

emails could be found with the 2024/2025 renewal attached before this email. They also

inquired about how to submit payment.

19. From May 3rd, 2024 - June 7th, 2024: A multitude of emails back and forth from the office to

the licensee explaining the status of the license. May 15th, 2024 the Program Coordinator

and Records and Licensing Supervisor had a phone call with two of the licensees to gain

understanding from both sides. The office did let the licensees know that applying for a new

license was also an option during the phone conversation.
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